

INSTRUCTIONS ON USING TESTING CONTROL SERVICE "EXAMUS"

Contents:

- 1. Examination procedure with the use of the "Examus" service
- 2. Checking computer and data transmission
- 3. Application's installation
 - 3.1 Eliminating problems when installing the application
 - 3.1.1 Changing the location of installation files
 - 3.1.2 Installing the application for a different Google profile
- 4. Starting the system
- 5. Working with the "Examus" proctoring system
 - 5.1 Authorization
 - 5.1.1 The system does not accept login and / or password
 - 5.1.2 White screen after authorization
 - 5.1.3 Authorization does not work properly (window with the test does not open)
 - 5.1.4 An account page opens instead of the exam page
 - 5.2 Starting to work with the application
 - 5.2.1 Computer setup
 - 5.2.2 Signing up for proctoring
 - 5.2.3 Starting an exam with proctoring
 - 5.3 Start of an exam
 - 5.4 Identification
 - 5.5 Undergoing testing
 - 5.6 Communication with a proctor
 - 5.7 Completion of the exam
- 6. Technical support service

1. Examination procedure with the use of the "Examus" service

- Install the application.
- Open the application using the "Entrance Examination" button and have your computer tested with the "Computer setup". In case this testing has <u>not</u> been completed, contact technical support service – <u>help@examus.net</u>
- Confirm the time you want to take the test at by clicking twice on the date you have chosen.
- Open the application and click on **Start the exam** at the time you have chosen (+/- 15 minutes)
- Take a photo of the identification document and send it to the proctor for it to be verified.
- You can start the exam once you receive a permission from the proctor.
- You can address proctor in a chat if needed.

2. Checking computer and data transmission

Before you start working in the system make sure that your computer meets the following requirements:

- You should have one of the following operating systems: Windows 7, Windows 8, Windows 8.1, Windows 10 o Mas OS version 10.9 or a newer one.
- You should have the latest version of Web browser Google
 Chrome (at the moment of taking the test) installed.
- Your computer must be equipped with a functioning external or built-in web cam.
- The Internet connection should be not slower than 1 Mbps per second.
- Your computer should successfully pass the "Computer setup" test. This "Computer setup" test is available after the installation of "Examus" application. You need to install the application and log in using your login and password.

IMPORTANT: If your computer does not meet these requirements or fails to pass "Computer setup" test, you cannot be provided with this service of taking an exam with proctoring.

3. Application's installation

To install the application:

- 1. Open Google Chrome and follow the link (Google Web Store) https://chrome.google.com/webstore/detail/examus/apippgiggejegjpimfjnaigmanampcjg
- 2. Click the **Install** button + установить twwolkova@gmail.com 👻 🎄 Интернет-магазин Chrome Examus p: examus ★★★★★★ (34) Расширения Пользователей: 4 657 Темы ОБЗОР ОТЗЫВЫ ПОХОЖИЕ G+ Совместимо с вашим устройством Bce back | forward | reload | Приложение студента для сдачи экзаменов через сервис "Экзамус" Ответы на часто задаваемые вопросы... ие студе Бесплат ов через сервис "Экзамус на часто зада .examus.info/faq/students Lights™ ия vs (версии 7, 8, 8.1, 10) или OS чи 10.9 и вь * * * 🟫 Сайт Особщить о нарушен *** Дополнительная информация Версия: 17.10.5 *** Обновле ю: 9 октября 2017 г. Размер: 96.96МіВ зык: русский CHECKER PLUS
- 3. In the pop-up window "Install Examus?" click the **Install the** application button:



4. Wait until the installation process is over:



5. Create a shortcut icon on your Desktop. In order to do it open the "Services" tab in Chrome browser (chrome://apps/), click the "Examus" icon with a right button, click on Create a shortcut and confirm creating a shortcut icon on the desktop.



3.1 Eliminating problems when installing the application

In case any problems arise when installing the application, try the following in order to eliminate them.

3.1.1 Changing the location of installation files

1. Open Google Chrome browser settings:



2. Click on the **Show additional settings** link:

Назн	ачить Google Chrome браузером по умолчанию
Google	Chrome не является сейчас браузером по умолч

3. Choose the "Downloaded files" item, change the location by default for the files you download:

Скачанные файлы		
Расположение скачиваемых файлов:	C:\install	Изменить
Всегда указывать место для скачи	вания	

3.1.2 Installing the application for a different Google profile

1. At the top right field of your browser click on the "User 1" or your login if you have entered your Google account, and choose the item Manage users:



2. In the pop-up window click on Add a user.



3. Type in a new user name in the field and click on **Save**:

oogiee	1 W 1 1 W		_	
	Добавить пользователя			
	Пользователь 1			
	Ω Ω Ω Ω Ω Ω Ω	5		
	🙎 🙊 🌹 🔩 😔 😂 🚳	٢		
	ter and ter and ter and ter and			
	ڬ 🎽 🚇 😫 🎽			
	Создать ярлык этого профиля на рабочем столе			
	Просматривать сайты, открытые этим пользователем, и контролировать его действия	через		
	аккаунт Google. Подробнее			
	OTMEHA	cc	ХРАНИ	ть

4. Start an installation process for a new user once again.

4. Starting the system

• Follow the application link in the Chrome Web Store given in a 3rd paragraph "Application's installation" and click on **Start**. Wait for an application to start.

🚖 Examus -	Интернет-магаз 🗙						Пользователь 1	-		×
← ⇒ C'	https://chrom	e.google.com	/webstore/detail/ex	amus/apip	ogiggejegjpimfjnaign	nanampcjg/	'related?utm_source=chro	me-app	-lar	3 =
	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	nus drey.sheka (2) <u>O</u> 6paзobar	<u>чие</u> Пользователей: 40	06			ВАПУСТИТЬ	4	×	
	обзор отзывы			КИЕ				G+1	1	
	Похожие									
	Масштабы Вселенной ★★★★/: (84)	*	Раскраски ★★★★☆ (40)		Ввод Word Game ★★★☆☆ (88)		ТОЕІС Ехат: лексика ★★★☆☆ (12)	EIC		
	Таблица	1	IELTS Exam: лексика	a 🚺	раскраска		My Java Zone	7.		

• You can also start the application by clicking twice on the shortcut icon if you have already created one in accordance with

recommendations from the 3rd paragraph "Application's installation"

5. Working with the "Examus" proctoring system a. Authorization

Once you start the application the authorization window will be available.

1. You need to click the **Entrance Examination** button in the authorization window in order to enter the HSE Moodle system:



2. You need to type in your login and password in the next window to enter the HSE Moodle system and click the **Enter** button.

 В начало > Вход на сайт 	
Вход	Вы в первый раз на нашем сайте?
Логин / адрес электронной почты Пароль Запомнить логин <u>Вход</u> Забыли логин или пароль? В Вашем браузере должен быть разрешен прием cookies 🕐	Для полноценного доступа к этому сайту Вам необходимо сначала создать учетную запись. Создать учетную запись

5.1.1 The system does not accept login and / or password

- 1. Check if the authorization works properly when entering the HSE website using browser. If not, use the password reset system ("Forgot login or password?")
- If the authorization works when entering the website in a browser, make sure you are entering "Examus" using the button Entrance Examination. Do not use the Examus button for authorization!



5.1.2 White screen after authorization

If after clicking **Higher School of Economics** button you see a white screen, you need to:

- 1. Click the **Refresh** button at the top left corner of the application;
- 2. If the error is still there after refreshing the page, close the application, close all the open Chrome windows and start the application once again.

5.1.3 Authorization does not work properly (window with the test does not open)

1. Do not press the Enter button on your keyboard after typing in your login and password, use the blue **Enter** button in the web-interface;

2. It usually takes some time for the page to load, wait a little, do not click the **Enter** button again while waiting.

5.1.4 An account page opens instead of the exam page

1. Make sure that all the required fields at your account page are filled in (including attachments of required files):

2. Click twice the **Previous** button at the top left corner of the application. You will get to the authorization page again. Click the **Entrance Examination** button once again to enter the HSE Moodle system.



5.2 Starting to work with the application

You will be offered three options in the welcoming window:

- Sign up for exam with proctoring;
- Get your computer set up before the exam;
- Start the exam (this button will be available if you have signed up for the exam and there are free available proctors)

Добро пожаловать в "	Экзам	ус"
Перед началом экзамена удостоверьтесь, что в требованиям	аш компьюте	ер настроен и соответствует
Начать экзамен	iii]	Записаться на прокторинг
Кнопка станет доступна за 10 минут до начала экзамена	٩ţ٩	Настройка компьютера

5.2.1 Computer setup

Clicking the **Set up the computer** button opens the computer testing window.

1. When undergoing testing it is necessary that you allow the application the access to the Desktop. To do it you need to opt for Desktop and click on **Share** in the pop-up window:

Весь экран	 		
		7	
Направанот на са		-	
Construction of the second sec			
	1.11111.20		

- 2. You need to wait till the testing process is over.
- 3. You need to eliminate inconsistencies (several screens or the web-cam being unavailable) if there are any and click the **Restart the testing** button.

	-	\times
Настройка компьютера		
·		
Проводится проверка работоспособности компонентов компьютера		
Сутствие дополнительных мониторов		
Покалуйста, отключите лишние дисплеи		
🕞 Трансляция веб-камеры и рабочего стола		
Повторить проверку Вернуться на стартовый экран		
Приложению Examus предоставлен доступ к вашему экрану. Закрыть доступ Скрыть		

- 4. If your computer has successfully undergone the testing, click the **Return to the start screen** button.
- 5. If for some reasons the testing lasts more than five minutes, and the button **Restart the testing** is not available, click the **Return to the start screen** button and start the testing once again.
- 6. If for some reasons you have not completed the testing at the first time, the button **Restart testing** becomes available. Click on it and start the testing again.
- In case the connection progress check line has stopped and there are no notifications about successful or unsuccessful result of the testing, contact technical support service at <u>help@examus.net</u>

	-	×
Настройка компьютера		
Проводится проверка работоспособности компонентов компьютера		
Отсутствие дополнительных мониторов		
Подключение вебкамеры		
Трансляция веб-камеры и рабочего стола		
Повторить проверку Вернуться на стартовый экран		

- 8. If the testing is not completed successfully after the second or third try, do the following:
 - Make sure you use the latest version of Google Chrome browser. To do this copy this address chrome://help in your browser address bar and update the current version if needed;
 - Check the operating system version of your computer. Google does no longer work with Windows XP, Vista. For the application to work properly you need Windows 7 or newer versions.
 - If the previous steps do not help, get your computer tested at <u>https://test.webrtc.org/</u>. Send us the screenshot with the results on email <u>help@examus.net</u>. Do not forget to

mention your personal email address you used to create your account in the system.

5.2.2 Signing up for proctoring

In order to take an exam, you need to confirm your registration for the proctoring.

- 1. When the button **Sign up for the proctoring** is clicked, a window with a calendar pops up where there are available slots for you to sign up for an exam.
- 2. Loading the list of your exams might take some time. However, if after waiting you still do not see your exam, click on **Refresh** at the top left corner.
- 3. Pay attention to the fact that you can sign up for an exam not later than 24 hours before it starts. It means that if you want to sign up for the exam on Wednesday morning you will not be able to do it later than Tuesday morning.
- 4. The first step is choosing an exam. You need to choose one from the list of available variants.
- 5. Pay attention to the following: on the right of this page you will see a list of exams that you signed up for. If you click on an exam from this list, this will cancel your registration.
- 6. After you choose an exam, a page with a calendar will be available, there will be slots for signing up for proctoring. Grey colored slots are not available – other people have already taken all the places.
- 7. Pay attention to the fact that proctoring for each exam is limited by dates of conducting an exam that the university sets up and by the fact whether there are any available proctors at a particular time.
- 8. Pay attention that if you want to sign up for the next week you need to choose a date in a calendar at the top of the right column.

3K3	амус	экзамены календарь								носкоя	CROE SP	THE	
	101412016488 28.11.2016	27039488 29.111.2016	rpras 30.11.2016	orrodyr 01.12.2016	0070640 02.12.2916	ry 550ra 93.12.2036	воскрессине 04.12.2016			Ho	695 2235		
30:00										12	NT 0		
01:00										2	3	4 5	
2:00											10 7	1 12	1
2.00								14	15	36	17 1	8 19	1.13
e:05								21	. 22	23	24 2	5 26	1 2
5.00								28		30	1 3	1 3	
101										_	-	-	-
1.00													
:00		20.05 - 29.05	lat. (11 - 179-00)	08.00 UNICO	M.M. 25.21	48.15 - 29.24							
1.01		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· 1.5 (5) (1)	9100 - 10 M	6	A 14 10 10							
				• 44 - 11 1100 - 11.00	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	10.00 - 11.00							
1.00				• 11710	♥ 55 = 50	♠ 6/6. ⊕ 8/7.							
					12.50 - 14.07								
		INTO AN OF		14.00 14.30 14.00 15.00	• 15 - 111								
4.00		0		1100-1110	✿ 15. = 11. ● 11. = 11. 10.00 - 10.00								
:00				•	•								
00													
-00													
1.02					· · · · ·								
R00				• 10 • 11	10-10 20-01 								
0.02		20.05 - 21.01	2010-21-00	2100 21.01	2010 - 21 10 • • • • • • • •								
-00													
00													

Important: It is a Moscow time zone that is given in a calendar – keep it in mind when picking the time for an exam.

	DOUIODODI UMV	READURY	(000)	1072005	DOTUMUS	0.65070	DOCKDOCOULO			HOCKO	BOVOT	DOGMO		
0:00	29.08.2016	30.08.2016	31.08.2016	01.09.2016	02.09.2016	03.09.2016	04.09.2016			моско	BCKOE	время	1	
1:00														
2:00								<		Ae	густ 20	16		
3:00														
1:00								пн	BT	CP	ЧТ	ΠT	СБ	
5:00								1	2	3	4	5	6	
5:00								8	9	10	11	12	13	
:00								15	16	17	18	19	20	
:00								22	23	24	25	26	27	
0:00	00.20 10.00	00.00 10.00	00.20 10.00	00.20 10.00 1				20	20	21	1	20	2	
:00				09:30 - 10:00 √ \$1/2 ∞ 0/1				29	30	31	1	2	3	
:00				1 1/2 = 0/1				5	6	7	8	9	10	
:00														
:00								Ваши	ближа	йшие	сеанс	ы:		
:00								У вас не	ет ближа	эйших э	кзамен	DB.		
:00														
:00														
:00														
:00														
:00														
00:00														

9. To sign up you need to click on the slot once to pick it and then click on it one more time, confirm your choice in the pop-up window:

Вы действительно хотите записаться на выбран	ный слот?
CANCEL	OK

10. A new notification will appear in the field "Your nearest sessions". The space with the session will become yellow.

													-	
> C											Вернуті	ься на (тартов	ый экр
	понедельник 22.05.2017	вторник 23.05.2017	среда 24.05.2017	четверг 25.05.2017	пятница 26.05.2017	суббота 27.05.2017	воскресенье 28.05.2017	<		I	Май 201	7		>
08:00								ПН	вт	СР	ЧТ	пт	СБ	BC
09:00								1	2	3	4	5	6	7
10:00								8	9	10	11	12	13	14
11:00		11:00 -	11:00 -	11:00 -				15	16	17	18	19	20	21
		15:00 ♥ 1/3 @	15:00 ♥ 0/3 ∞	15:00 ♥ 2/3 @				22	23	24	25	26	27	28
12:00			0/1	0/1				29	30	31	1	2	3	4
13:00								5	0		0	9	10	11
14:00								Ваши	ближа	айшие	е сеанс	ы		
15:00								23.05	.2017 1	1:00			240 м	ин.
16:00								Зачет						0
17:00														

- 11. If this space does not become yellow, refresh the page by clicking on the button at the top left corner.
- 12. To change the time you signed up for, you need to click on the time you have picked and confirm the cancellation. After that you can pick a new slot.
- 13. Do not click on the chosen exams anymore! You may accidentally cancel your registration.
- 14. If you want to sign up for another exam, click the **Previous** button at the top left corner or use the **Return to the start screen** button.

Pay attention that you can cancel your registration not later than 24 hours before the exam starts. For example, you cannot cancel your registration for Wednesday morning on Tuesday evening.

15. If your exam is not in the list, click the **Do not see your exam?** button. You will receive the instructions.

<pre>C</pre>		— — X Вернуться на стартовый экран
Выбор экзамена	Все заведения mipt	Ваши ближайшие сеансы:
Маркетинг (000) _Для тестирования_ Платежи в интернете 04 дек 15- 31 июля 16 mipt 90 мин.	Подраздел (000) _Для тестирования_ Платежи в интернете 04 дек 15- Invalid date mipt 30 мин.	23.05.2017 11:00 240 мин. Зачет (000)_Для теспьрокания_Платежи в интернете
Не видите свой экзамен?		

5.2.3 Starting an exam with proctoring

- 1. Enter the application at the time appointed by you.
- 2. The **Start the exam** button will be active not earlier than 10 minutes before the time appointed by you for taking an exam.

Добро пожаловать в систему "Экзамус"							
Перед началом экзамена удостоверьтесь, что ваш компьютер настроен и соотвествует требованиям							
Начать экзамен	Записаться на прокторинг						
Кнопка станет доступна за 10 минут до начала экзамена	Настройка компьютера						

3. In case the **Start the exam** button does not become active, the following variants can be possible:

Variant 1. The **Start the exam** button is unavailable because the time has not come yet or there is no such an appointment. Variant 2. There are no free proctors. If your time for taking an exam has come, but the **Start the exam** button is unavailable with a note "There are no free proctors", you should immediately contact the "Examus" technical service support: help@examus.net

Добро пожаловать в систему "Экзамус"					
Перед началом экзамена удостоверьтесь, требованиям	что ваш компьютер настроен и соотвествует				
Начать экзамен	Записаться на прокторинг				
Нет свободных прокторов	🔶 Настройка Компьютера				

4. If there are free proctors and an appointment is made, the **Start the exam** button becomes available 10 minutes before the exam.

Добро пожаловать в систему "Экзамус"							
Перед началом экзамена удостоверьтесь, что ваш компьютер настроен и соотвествует требованиям							
	Записаться на прокторинг						
	Настройка компьютера						

- 5. After you click the **Start the exam** button in the application, you should read and accept exam procedure rules and study system requirements for the application.
- 6. Confirm your acceptance of the online testing procedure rules, processing and storage of your personal data and also being ready to receive, sign and send an agreement form on processing personal data to the "Examus" system postal address and click the "Continue" button.



7. You will be directed to the "Computer setup page"

5.3 Starting an exam with proctoring

In the "Computer setup" window you will be offered the same process as when you click **Computer setup** at the start screen. After completing computer setup, click the **Continue** button and you will move to the identification window.

- 5.4 Identification
- In the "Identification" window, hold your passport or another identification document up to the web-cam and click Take a photo button.

Идентификация личности

Пожалуйста, сфотографируйте документ, удостоверяющий личность.



2. Make sure that passport data can be easily read from the photo and click the orange **Send** button.



- 3. If the document data is unreadable, click on **Retake a photo** and do it once again.
- 4. If you have any problems at the taking photos of the documents stage, write about it in the chat box with a proctor.
- 5.5 Undergoing testing

1. After the document has been sent, a waiting window will be displayed with a chat room on the right side. You can ask a proctor organizational questions you may have there.

			-		×
		Когда можно на эн	ачинать кзамен?	18:11	L
Пожалуйста, ожидайте, когда проктор разрешит вам начать экзамен					
	Отправит	ъ			_li

2. It is essential that you give the application the access to your screen (**Share** button). Otherwise, the exam will not take place.

Зесь экран		

DO NOT: Interrupt access to the screen using the **Close access** button, which you can see at the bottom of the screen, unless the proctor himor herself asked you to do so!!

Sometimes a proctor can ask you to close the access to the desktop and open it again - do it!



However, you can remove this window from the field of vision if it disturbs you (click the **Hide** button).

3. A proctor may ask you to retake a photo of the document, in that case you will be automatically directed to the identification page.

Идентифика	ция личности	Ļ
Пожалуйста, сфотогра личность.	фируйте документ, удост	оверяющий
	TOTAL LATTORESTA TOTAL LATTORESTA TOTAL LATTORESTA TOTAL LATTORESTA TOTAL LATTOR TOTAL LATTORESTA TOTAL LATTORESTA	
	Перефотографировать	Сфотографировать

- 4. When a proctor approves the document, the page will be refreshed and the "Higher School of Economics" website as well as the **Start test** button will become available.
- 5. Please note that you will be able to see a video window in which you will see yourself as a proctor sees you. Adjust your camera so your face can be seen completely:



6. After you click the **Start test** button, you can start working. Be sure to pay attention to the timer that displays the time you have until the end of the exam:



7. If during the exam you want to go back to one of the test questions, use the navigation block on the left side of the screen:

Маркетинг 11.2017		HT
🏠 Личный кастет 📏 Итоговое	тестирование слуша	телей НПОО > Марк_11.2017
Навигация по тесту 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 Закончить попытку 3акончить попытку 3акончить попытку	Вопрос 1 Пока нет ответа Балл: 1,00 Г Отметить вопрос	ВSP в четырехуровневой мод Выберите один ответ: Меняющееся позициони Лучшее выгодное предла Оценка бренда через пра Торговое предложение б

5.6 Communication with a proctor

1. In the case of you taking prohibited actions, the proctor will send a report on the violation, which will be displayed in the chat line (on the right):

< > C		– 🗆 X
ВЫСШАЯ ШКОЛА национальный исследоват	ЭКОНОМИКИ ельский университет Светлана 💽 -	
Пробный курс_2	ца	 Покажите пожалуйста свое рабочее место, для этого поверните веб-камеру так, чтобы она показала ваш стол
Навигация по тесту	Пробный курс_2 Вогрос 1 Пока нет ответа Выберите один ответ:	• Yeog Bornega C separa 12:33 Xeog Documentation and an and a separation of the second seco
Начать новый просмотр	P Ortertris 1933 sorpoc 1856 S Pepartinosars 1905 scrpoc 1920 @ 1897	охончания экзамена?
Моя домашняя страница ■ Домашняя страница ▶ Страницы сайта ▼ Текущий курс ▼ Пробный курс_2	Следующая страница	

2. You can communicate with the proctor throughout the exam and ask questions using the chat.

3. Please follow all the proctor's instructions!

5.7 Completion of the exam

1. If you are sure of your answers and you are ready to send them to get them checked, click the **End Try** button:



- 2. You will see a page with preliminary test results. The final score will be counted after the proctor's final examination of the exam procedure.
- 3. Close the "Examus" application

6. Technical support service

To notify us about the arising problems, please contact the technical support department of HSE at <u>elearn@hse.ru</u>, <u>openedu@hse.ru</u>, or "Examus" technical support service at <u>help@examus.net</u>.